
PARKING ADVISORY COMMITTEE AGENDA
Wednesday, October 18, 2023 - 6:00 PM

City Hall, Council Chambers, 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport , OR 97365

All public meetings of the City of Newport will be held in the City Council Chambers of the
Newport City Hall, 169 SW Coast Highway, Newport. The meeting location is accessible to
persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter, or for other accommodations, should be
made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Erik Glover, City Recorder at
541.574.0613, or e.glover@newportoregon.gov.

All meetings are live-streamed at https://newportoregon.gov, and broadcast on Charter Channel
190. Anyone wishing to provide written public comment should send the comment to
publiccomment@newportoregon.gov. Public comment must be received four hours prior to a
scheduled meeting. For example, if a meeting is to be held at 3:00 P.M., the deadline to submit
written comment is 11:00 A.M. If a meeting is scheduled to occur before noon, the written
comment must be submitted by 5:00 P.M. the previous day.
To provide virtual public comment during a city meeting, a request must be made to the meeting
staff at least 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting. This provision applies only to public
comment and presenters outside the area and/or unable to physically attend an in person
meeting.

The agenda may be amended during the meeting to add or delete items, change the order of
agenda items, or discuss any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting.

1.  WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

1.1 Memorandum:
Memorandum

2.  ROLL CALL

1

mailto:e.glover@newportoregon.gov
https://newportoregon.gov/
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228933/Staff_Memo.pdf


3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES

3.1 September 20, 2023 Parking Advisory Committee Meeting.
Draft Parking Advisory Comm Mtg Minutes 09-20-2023

4.  DISCUSSION ITEMS

4.1 Review and Discuss Updated Implementat ion Schedule.

4.2 Request by Chair Goplen to Discuss Security Camera Requirements.

4.3 Options for Providing Free Parking in Tier I I  Permit  Zones.

4.4 Confirmation of  Parking Permit  Fee and Time Limitat ion Changes.

4.5 Off icer Valent ine Demonstrat ion of  the LPR Handheld and Programmed
Paystat ions.

5.  PUBLIC COMMENT
This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Work Group's attention any

item not listed on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3) minutes per person
with a maximum of 15 minutes for all items.  Speakers may not yield their time to others.

6.  ADJOURNMENT

HANDOUTS

Meeting Materials:
Updated Implementation Schedule
T2 Parking Management Implementation Status Report
Staff Email to Michelle Moore Regarding Her Request for Free Parking Areas
Updated Bayfront Parking Large Format Map 

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2218912/Draft_Park_Advisory_Comm_Mtg_Minutes_09-20-2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228952/Updated_Implementation_Schedule.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228953/T2_Parking_Management_Implementation_Status_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228954/Email_to_Michelle_-_10-04-2023_Redacted.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228955/Bay_Front_Parking_Large_Format_v5.pdf


Chair Goplen's Request to Discuss Security Cameras 
Ordinance No. 2214 (approved)
Draft Ordinance No. 2215 (Council to consider on 10/16/23)
Public Comment

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228956/Email_to_Goplen_on_Cameras_-_10-04-2023_Redacted.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228957/ORD_2214_Signed.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228958/Ordinance_No._2215_draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2228961/Public_Comment_-_Redacted.pdf


City of Newport Community Development 
Department 

Me:morandu:m 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Parking Advisory Committee d 
Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Community Development Direlt~\ 

October 12,2023 

Topics for October 18th Parking Advisory Committee Meeting 

For this meeting, we have identified five agenda items for the Advisory Committee's consideration. First, is an 
opportunity for the Committee to review and discuss an updated implementation schedule. This will be followed 
by a request by Chair Goplen to discuss security camera requirements, a review of options for providing free 
parking in Tier II permit zones, Committee confirmation of the fee and time limitation provisions, and a 
demonstration of the LPR handheld and programmed Pay Stations by Parking Enforcement Officer Valentine. 

With respect to stakeholder outreach, we have met with the Commercial Fishing Users Group (9/6/23), Bayfront 
businesses (9119/23), Rotary (9/21123) and managers at Bornstein Seafoods and Pacific Seafood. We are 
tentatively scheduled to meet with the Port Commission (10/24/23) and have an outreach session scheduled with 
the staff at Bornstein (1111123). I am awaiting a response from Pacific Seafood as to a date that works for their 
staff. From the feedback received to-date, the Advisory Committee was amenable to adjusting the time limit for 
Commercial Fishing Permits in Zones B and D from 72 hours to 96 hours, making fleet management an option 
for all businesses (which allows the owner/operator to reassign permits when staff changes over), and to provide 
a reduced fee (i.e. a $100 annual fee) in Tier II permit areas to encourage their use. 

The first item on the agenda is an updated implementation schedule. It includes a "soft" launch option where the 
Pay Stations would go live after the first of the year and would be operational on weekends only. At the same 
time, the City would offer free courtesy permits in areas designated for paid permit parking. The courtesy permits 
would be valid through April. The advantage to this approach is that it provides a period of time for folks to setup 
their parking accounts and we can debug any issues that come up with the e-permitting and its interface with the 
License Plate Reader (LPR) enforcement tools. It also provides time for us to coordinate with those that will be 
doing fleet management to help them get setup. Parking enforcement officer Valentine would use the time to 
direct people to the e-permitting option, where appropriate. Courtesy permits would be setup with an automatic 
email notice to advise permit holders when the "paid" permits will be available for purchase. Another advantage 
of this approach is that it will give us a sense of the number of permits that are likely to be purchased, recognizing 
that there might be some folks who don't want a permit when they have to pay for it, particularly in Tier I areas. 
Lastly, Bayfront businesses paid a business license surcharge when renewing their business licenses earlier this 
year. That surcharge will go away when the meter I paid permit program is fully implemented meaning they will 
not have to pay it in 2024. Using the courtesy permit in this manner allows businesses to not have to pay two fees 
in short succession. Instead, businesses will be able to take what they would otherwise have reserved for the 
parking business license surcharge in 2024 and apply it to parking permits instead. 

Enclosed is a current project management schedule for where we are at with implementing the T2 Parking 
Management Solution. I'll be prepared to walk through it at the meeting. In short, the UpSafety component, 
which includes electronic permits and ticketing, is at a point where the vendor is configuring the permit types and 
zones based upon the information they have been given and is coordinating with Oregon DMV as the City's agent 
for license plate lookups so that they can send delinquent ticket notices on our behalf. As for the LPR technology, 

Page 1 of3 4



the vendor, Genetec, will be in Newport on 10/24 and 10/25 to install the camera array and associated equipment 
on the City's parking enforcement vehicle. Most of the equipment has shipped and is now in the City's possession. 
Genetec is in the process of programming its server with the permit zones we have established. We are having an 
issue with the SIM chip in the LPR handheld, which may require it be sent back to the vendor for adjustments. 
Mobile Pay is the "text to pay" feature. The vendor is in the process of configuring the software and testing 
transactions with the Merchant account we have setup for receivables. They are also putting together a template 
for the 50 "text to pay" signs the City will be installing in the metered areas. The text to pay signs will have 
different codes depending upon where they are located along the Bayfront. This will help with tracking utilization 
and demand. The Pay Station kiosks are being programmed, and City staff is installing new controllers and 
printers (upgrades from the vendor). Once the component parts have been configured, there will be a need for 
Cloud verification to make sure all of the pieces are communicating with one another appropriately. City staff is 
going through e-permitting fleet management training on l 0/17/23 and Cloud Administration training is scheduled 
for 10/23/23. 

With respect to administrative steps the City needs to take to move ahead with the meter I paid permit program, 
the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2214 on l 0/2/2023 (enclosed). It includes the requisite administrative 
provisions which you have reviewed at previous meetings. Ordinance No. 2215 is being considered by the City 
Council at its 10/16/23 meeting. That ordinance includes the land use changes reducing off-street parking 
requirements for new development or redevelopment in metered areas. This was the trade-off the Council agreed 
to in Ordinance No. 2163, with property owners getting more flexibility to expand or develop anew in areas where 
demand management (i.e. meters) are being deployed. The fmal item is a resolution the Council will need to adopt 
to set the meter, parking permit, and related fees. That document will be presented to the Council in November, 
so this might be the last meeting where the Committee can make fee adjustments (it is an agenda item). The 
current fee structure is included as an attachment. 

Chair Gop len asked if the group could have an opportunity to discuss security cameras, which the City intends to 
install along the Bayfront near where the Pay Stations are being placed. Our IT Department is pulling together 
options for a networked series of cameras that would be small and enclosed so that they don't stand out. Hopefully, 
I will have some options for you to review at the meeting. The Pay Stations are expensive, at just over $1 Ok a 
piece, and they will be attractive targets for vandalism, and theft considering that coin payment is an option. 
Monitoring the units with security cameras is a prudent step given this risk, and the cost of the 10 camera setup 
should be relatively modest at around $1 Ok. It appears that we will have just enough for the cameras as part of 
the project's overall budget of$640,000. As a reminder, here is where the project stands at this time: 

T2 Systems Inc., Contract Expenses 

(Pay Stations, LPR Equipment, E-Permitting, Mobile Pay, etc.). 

Bay Blvd Public Parking Lot Refurbishment 

Sign Post/Base Install and Pay Station Foundations 

New Sign Posts 

Production of l 00 Regulatory Signs 

$175,664.95 

$248,314.75 

$179,500.00 

$21,905.03 

$4,200.00 

Total: $629,584.83 

This is the same summary presented at your 8/16/23 meeting. No additional costs have been incurred since that 
time. The contracted pavement work has been completed, and while the final billing statements have yet to be 
submitted our Public Works Department expects the project will come in a little under the bid amount, due to 
material quantities being less than anticipated. The contractor hired to install the Pay Station bases and about half 
of the sign posts will wrap up their work on 10/13/23 and it came in at the bid amount. 

Attached is correspondence received from Michelle Moore, a Bayfront Business owner, and others expressing 
opposition to paid parking on the Bayfront. Ms. Moore has also requested that the Advisory Committee consider 
making parts of the permit/timed areas free for all day parking. Attached is an updated version of the basemap 
that we have been using illustrating the parking program for the Bayfront. I have flagged four options for the 
Committee's consideration. With respect to NW Canyon Way, the committee could sign the upper portion, above 
the Canyon Way lot, for 12-hour parking. A similar step could be taken on Hatfield, beginning at the hydrant at 

Page2 of3 5



the south end of the retaining wall, or at the east end of By Blvd between the entrance to the Port Administrative 
Building and the entrance to Englund Marine. Another option would be to sign NW Hurbert Street for 12-hour 
parking, which is how it was designated in the version of the plan adopted with the parking study (Ord. No. 2163). 
I would encourage committee members to carefully consider whether or not you want to make one or more of 
these changes, others that I haven't identified, or stand pat with the plan as presented. T2 Systems and Genetec 
are configuring their servers with the current zones, so if changes are to be made we need to get them to them 
ASAP. 

The last item on the agenda is reserved for Parking Enforcement Officer Valentine to provide a demonstration of 
how the Pay Stations and LPR handheld will work. We will have one of the configured Pay Stations at the meeting 
(less the decals that are being shipped), so you will have a chance to inspect the unit and its features. 

I expect that members of the public will attend the meeting, so we will want to reserve time at the end for public 
comment. It would also be helpful for members to attend in person, if possible, given the likelihood of public 
comment and the equipment demonstration. See you on Wednesday! 

Attachments 
Updated Implementation Schedule 
T2 Parking Management Implementation Status Report 
Staff Email to Michelle Moore Regarding Her Request for Free Parking Areas 
Updated Bayfront Parking Large Format Map 
Chair Gop len's Request to Discuss Security Cameras 
Ordinance No. 2214 (approved) 
Draft Ordinance No. 2215 (Council to consider on 10/16/23) 
Public Comment 

Page 3 of3 6



Page 1    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 9/20/2023. 
 

Draft MINUTES 

Parking Advisory Committee 

Meeting #15 

Newport City Hall Council Chambers 

September 20, 2023 

 

Committee Members Present: Robert Emond. 

 

Committee Members Present By Video: Doretta Smith, Bill Branigan, Janell Goplen, Aracelly 

Guevara, Aaron Bretz, and Gary Ripka. 

 

Committee Members Absent: Jan Kaplan. 

 

City Staff Present: Community Development Director, Derrick Tokos; Parking Enforcement Officer, 

Donald Valentine; and Executive Assistant, Sherri Marineau. 

 

Public Present: Jason Palm 

 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call.  Meeting started at 6:00 p.m.  

 

2. Approval of Minutes.  

 

Branigan reported minor corrections to the minutes.  

 

MOTION was made by Bill Branigan, seconded by Robert Emond, to approve the August 16, 2023 

Parking Advisory Committee meeting minutes with minor corrections. The motion carried 

unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

3. Stakeholder Outreach Update and Discussion. Tokos outlined the outreach with the commercial 

fishing users group. Goplen suggested that businesses on the Bayfront should have the same capability 

for permits as the fishing boats. She thought it would be a benefit to the rest of the businesses on the 

Bayfront. Tokos noted that all of the permits would have a pallet of options. 

 

Ripka and Tokos discussed potential fleet management options for multi-vessel owners. Ripka guessed 

that there were around three to four commercial fleet owners that had multiple boats. Tokos reminded 

what this was saying was they were making the fleet permits an option, and the owner/operators would 

decide how to choose. 

 

Goplen suggested businesses on the Bayfront should have the same capability to manage permits for 

the people in their businesses as the fishing boats. Tokos suggested using QR codes for single use 

permits for commercial fishing boats to provide flexibility for vessel owner/operators. Goplen 

suggested using signage on the dock to remind boaters to scan the QR code and provide their license 

plate number before departing. Ripka noted that turnover and last-minute changes were constant, and 

a quick scan option could help alleviate these issues. Bretz pointed out that someone could take a 

photo of the QR code and pass it around. Tokos thought a fix to this would be to periodically reset the 

QR codes and distribute them.  

 

Emond questioned the pricing for a one-time use code. Tokos Derrick suggested $10 per use. Emond 

thought the price will be self-limiting to prevent last-minute abuse. 

 

Tokos reported the commercial fishing group asked the Committee to consider the parking permits be 

7



Page 2    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 9/20/2023. 
 

96 hours instead of 72. Ripka thought 72 hours was too short and the fishermen would end up getting 

parking tickets. Typically, his boats were out on four day trips, sometimes seven. Tokos noted the 

longer duration trips should park further away from the docks. Ripka thought in general 72 hours was 

too short. Bretz thought it was a question of where the short and long term parking was. The Port 

parking was better suited for long term parking. Ripka was worried about the parking for the shrimp 

boat trips that happened between April 1st through November 1st. Bretz suggested they start with 96 

hours to begin with. Goplen thought the purpose was to keep the cars rotating. She felt 96 hours was 

a long time to park. Emond suggested starting with a smaller time (e.g., 72 hours) to minimize 

pushback, then adjust based on feedback.  

 

Ripka explained that only 2-3 boats are out at sea at a time, and they wouldn’t all be gone at the same 

time. Goplen asked how many crew members were on the boats. Ripka said around four. Tokos asked 

how many vessels that were typically out longer than 96 hours. Ripka reported there were around 20 

boats that did four day trips, but they weren't leaving or coming back at the same time. He didn’t think 

that many spaces would be taken up for the 96 hour parking, and thought it would be less than 10 

spaces. 

 

Bretz emphasized the importance of setting regulations and sticking to them, instead of having to back 

down because people didn't think the system was fair. Tokos thought fleet owners and operators might 

be more willing to cooperate with the parking arrangement if given 96 hours. Ripka agreed and 

reminded the entire fleet wouldn’t be tying up parking for 96 hours at the same time. Goplen thought 

96 hours was reasonable. She noted that Bayfront business were upset that their employees could only 

park for 4 hours while the fleet got 96 hours. She questioned if that was fair. 

 

MOTION was made by Bill Branigan, seconded by Robert Emond, to change the commercial fleet 

parking permits to 96 hours. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

Ripka questioned how they would recognize the vehicles that were moved overnight but looked like 

they were in the same spot every day. Officer Valentine reported there would be indicators that the car 

had been moved. Emond asked if it would be common for someone to park in the same spot every 

day. Valentine said he saw this currently being done, and was familiar with the frequent cars that were 

parked all the time. 

 

Tokos explained that the city was working on installing pay stations for parking, with a goal of 

launching in January. They were coordinating with vendors and stakeholders to ensure a smooth 

launch, despite uncertainty around crab season opening dates. Gary said it was rare to start the season 

in December. The Committee discussed the potential launch date for the program, with some members 

suggesting a later date to avoid conflicting with other events. The Committee agreed to table the 

conversation until next month's meeting to gain more information before making a decision.  

 

Tokos reported he met with the managers of Pacific Seafood and Bornstein, and would be setting up 

meetings with their staffs. Sharon Snow, office manager for Pacific Seafood had questions and 

feedback on parking fees, including options for offseason pricing and lower fees in different zones. 

The Committee discussed the pros and cons of each option, including the challenge of allocating 

permits by type and the need to set parameters annually. 

 

Goplen suggested conducting a survey to determine the actual number of employees at businesses 

along Bay Boulevard, as the current estimate of 107 spaces may not be accurate. This would show that 

the city reached out to businesses to find out what was needed. Tokos agreed that a survey could be 

helpful in determining the number of permits needed in Zones A and B, but noted that paid parking 

areas would always have some capacity. Tokos suggested they could offer an annual pass with a 

8



Page 3    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 9/20/2023. 
 

discounted off-season, and only offer a limited number of permits available.  The only downside to 

this was that it would be difficult to manage the number of permits that were available, because they 

had to allocate for both the basic monthly permits, versus the annual. Goplen agreed that this option 

would be simpler, but noted that it may be more difficult to manage the number of permits available. 

Emond asked if the off and on seasons would be for six months each. Tokos confirmed it would be. 

 

Tokos proposed parking pricing options for employees, with the Tier II priced at $75 for May to 

October, and $25 for November to April. Emond thought that was fair, and thought lowering the price 

for where they wanted people to park was a good thing. Smith asked if this meant that someone would 

pay $100 a year to park in the Tier II zone. Tokos confirmed it would be $100 year in the Tier II, or 

$350 in Tier I. They would still be a hunting permits. 

 

MOTION was made by Robert Emond, seconded by Bill Branigan, to adopt the on-season and off-

season pricing of $275 peak, $75 off peak for Tier I, and $75 peak, $25 off peak for Tier II. The motion 

carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

Ripka left the meeting at 7:18 pm. 

 

Goplen praised Tokos for the good job he did during the meeting with the Bayfront business owners. 

Tokos acknowledged that the meeting raised concerns about the impact on local businesses. He 

confirmed with the owners that the city was already committed to moving forward with the project. 

 

4. Progress Report on T2 Systems Implementation. Tokos reported they were working with T2 

Systems twice a week to implement the system and do the programing of the pay stations. He provided 

updates on the parking system implementation, meetings with stakeholders and vendors, and the 

installation of license plate recognition technology. Tokos noted he hadn’t received  any pushback in 

the outreach meetings on the zone locations. He confirmed that the vendor would install the license 

plate recognition technology towards the end of October. 

 

Tokos reported the parking lots had been paved, and they were putting up sign posts and foundations 

for the pay stations. Goplen asked if the zones would have curbs that were color marked for the 

different areas. Tokos said there would be a zone designations on the signs for this. The signs wouldn’t 

be different colors. 

 

Tokos reported they walked the Bayfront and would be pricing out the cost of security cameras for the 

pay stations. Goplen asked if the cameras would be placed on the pay stations. Tokos said each of the 

light poles had power at the top of them and where the cameras would be placed. Goplen thought this 

could get expensive and asked if the funds should come out of the parking money. Tokos explained 

they were pricing it out and wouldn't exclusively pull money from the parking fund. Goplen thought 

it should be a law enforcement expense, not parking expense. Tokos would advocate on this. 

 

5.  Revisions to Parking Codes to Facilitate Bayfront Metering. Tokos reviewed the changes to NMC 

Chapter 6.2, Metered Parking Zones, explaining that the changes would go directly to the City Council 

for review because it was a regulatory code. He covered the changes to how vehicles were exempt 

from metered parking spaces; storage of nonvehicle property; and compliance to time limit 

requirements for zones.  

 

Goplen expressed confusion about the parking meter limit, questioning why a family couldn’t add 

more time to their meter after the initial 4-hour limit. Tokos clarified that they would be limited to 4-

hours in the zone. It was in place to encourage turnover and ensure fairness for employees who paid 

for parking permits. Goplen thought this would be an area of confusion for someone who wanted to 

9



Page 4    Draft Parking Advisory Committee Minutes – 9/20/2023. 
 

stay in area. She worried if signage would clarify the public needed to move to a different zone for 

extended parking, citing examples of spa appointments or lunch breaks. Tokos thought people 

operated within the time limits and understood they couldn’t stay over four hours. Smith was 

concerned the zones could become confusing. Goplen said there would be circumstances where people 

wanted to stay more than four hours. Tokos said there were zone references on signs identifying what 

zone they were parking in. 

 

Tokos continued his review of the amendments to NMC 6.20.035, obstruction of meters. He 

mentioned that the police department could tow and impound vehicles that violated metering rules 

after three unpaid tickets. Goplen asked if after three tickets the vehicle would be booted. Tokos said 

after three tickets the person wouldn't be able to park. If Chief Malloy was to say the boot would be 

added, they needed to get the message out that it would happen. Emond asked when the police could 

tow a vehicle. Tokos said this would be utilized when people were parking dangerously.  

 

Tokos reported that NMC 6.20.050 had been removed. He covered the changes concerning courtesy 

permits and coupon codes. Smith asked if coupons were the same thing as businesses that wanted to 

give out validation codes. Tokos said coupons were more simple and there would be a promo code 

that could be given out to get a day of parking. Goplen suggested businesses take advantage of promo 

codes as well, such as for sponsorship opportunities or to offer discounts to customers. Tokos pointed 

out they could also do a 50 percent reduction instead of 100 percent as well. Emond asked if the coupon 

codes would replace validations. Tokos said coupons were easier to put out, but validations would still 

have to be worked out.  

 

Tokos asked if the Committee was generally comfortable with the updates. Emond noted that Tokos 

mentioned taking out the text that said they would be hooding the meters. Tokos said this was for 

single stall post meters. What they could do was program the pay stations to say they weren’t working 

and outside of the timeframe that they had to pay. 

 

Tokos noted that he and Smith would be attending the Rotary Club meeting the next day to speak to 

the group about the program. 

 

6.  Public Comment. None were heard.  

 

7. Adjournment. Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:52 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
     

Sherri Marineau 

Executive Assistant 

10



 

 2023 2024 
Task Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

               
1. T2 Systems Contract Executed               
               
2. T2 Project Kick-off               
               
3. Stakeholder Outreach               
               
4. Parking System Setup                 
    (Mobile Pay, Permits, Enforcement)               
               
5. Establish Regulatory Framework               
               
6. License Plate Recognition Install               
               
7. Parking Lot Improvements               
               
8. Sign Pole Purchase and Install               
               

9. Regulatory Sign Design and Install               
               
10. Pay Station Configuration & Install               
               
11. Pay Stations Weekends Only                       
      with Courtesy Permits               
               
12. Enroll Users and Debug               
               
13. Notice Availability of Paid Permits               
               

14. Go Live Full Paid/Permit Program               
               
Legend         

  Legislative Work Sessions 
  Formal Action (Adoption)     
                                                                             v2 

 Wrap-up Configuration  Design  Public Engagement Activities 
 Training Sessions  Bid Project  Implementation 
  

 

  

 
Bayfront Parking Management Implementation Schedule 

11



(10-2-23) Newport Oregon

T2 Project Manager: Jennifer Watson

Phase 1 - Contractual Agreement
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Contract Execution Complete Yes N/A 4490252664

UPsafety Project Team Assigned Kim Hechinger Complete Yes N/A 4490252121

Welcome Email Sent to new UPsafety Customer Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252078

Phase 2 - Post Contract Information Gathering
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)

Kick Off Meeting - Clarify Deliverables Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A Welcome Email Sent to new UPsafety 
Customer 4490252281

Weekly Project Status Call Scheduled Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252533

UPsafety Enforcement Hardware Order Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252067

Phase 3 - Development (If applicable)
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)

Phase 4a - UPsafety Configurations
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Online Onboarding Link Email Sent to Customer Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252561

Online Onboarding Completed by UPsafety Customer In Progress Yes N/A Welcome Email Sent to new UPsafety 
Customer 4490252075

eCommerce Patron Portal UI Customization Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A Online Onboarding Completed by UPsafety 
Customer 4490252232

eCommerce Patron Portal / IVR ACH Stripe Onboarding Complete Yes N/A 4490252108

IVR Phone Line Activation Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252319

Printed Ticket Customization Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A Online Onboarding Completed by UPsafety 
Customer 4490252355

Preview of ticket approved by customer Complete N/A N/A 4490252780

Notice Letter and/or Email Customization Jennifer Watson In Progress Yes N/A 4490252603

Notice Letter and/or Email approved by Customer Upcoming Yes N/A 4490294910

Scofflaw Repeat Offender Identification Settings Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252369

Desired Client Report Configuration Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252595

Out of State DMV Owner Lookup Discussion and Configuration Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252338

In State DMV Owner Lookup Discussion and Configuration Jennifer Watson In Progress Yes N/A 4490252189

Permit Types & Zones Configuration Jennifer Watson In Progress Yes N/A 4490252064

12

https://monday.com/?utm_source=virality&utm_campaign=export_to_excel&utm_banner=powered_by_monday


Phase 4b - Genetec ALPR Configurations - Ryan
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Kick Off Meeting - Clarify Deliverables Ryan Armes, Jennifer Watso Complete Yes N/A 4490252602

Genetec provide the template truth table Ryan Armes Complete Yes N/A 4490252372

Template truth table returned to Genetec Complete Yes N/A 4490252408

Genetec provide questionnaire Ryan Armes Complete Yes N/A 4490252439

Questionnaire returned to Genetec In Progress Yes N/A 4490252466

Genetec KML mapping file requests Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252491

KML mapping file requests returned to Genetec Complete Yes N/A 4490252527

Permits, locations, zones etc established Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252698

API information sent to Genetec Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252276

SFTP Configuration (Scofflaw, Permits, Hits) Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252303

SFTP Configuration sent to Genetec Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252344

Genetec ships ALPR equipment Ryan Armes Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252571

Genetec ALPR equipment Received Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252731

Genetec ALPR deployment Ryan Armes Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252751

Genetec ALPR testing completed Ryan Armes Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252726

Genetec ALPR setup approved Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252753

Phase 4c - T2 MobilePay Configuration - Arnet
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Kick Off Meeting - Clarify Deliverables Arnet Tkachuk Complete Yes N/A 4490252379

Virtual Machine/API Created in Iris Arnet Tkachuk Complete Yes N/A 4490252436

VAR Sheet Recieved from client In Progress Yes N/A VAR Sheet sent to TEZ 4490252500

VAR Sheet sent to TEZ Arnet Tkachuk Complete Yes N/A 4490252467

Create and Test Customer Location Arnet Tkachuk Complete Yes N/A VAR Sheet Recieved from client 4490252877

IRIS Training Arnet Tkachuk Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252984

iMeter Configuration setup Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A Virtual Machine/API Created in Iris 4490252398

iMeter Test transactions sent Upcoming Yes N/A iMeter Configuration setup 4490252139

iMeter Test transactions Verified Upcoming Yes N/A iMeter Test transactions sent 4490253082

Signage Purchase order Ready Arnet Tkachuk Upcoming Yes N/A Signage Order sent to TEZ 4490252665

Signage Order sent to TEZ Arnet Tkachuk Upcoming Yes N/A Kick Off Meeting - Clarify Deliverables 4490252159

Signage information/Specs received from TEZ In Progress Yes N/A Kick Off Meeting - Clarify Deliverables 4490252632

Signage proofs approved by customer Upcoming Yes N/A Kick Off Meeting - Clarify Deliverables 4490252670

Signage Printed and Shipped Upcoming Yes N/A Signage Purchase order Ready 4490252179

Phase 4d - LUKE II Configuration - Haroon
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Kick Off Meeting - Clarify Deliverables aroon.yaqubi@t2systems.co Complete Yes N/A 4490252593

13



T2 MobilePay Pay to Park (Phone App/Kiosk) Configurations Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252262

Vehicle Mounted ALPR Configuration (Scofflaw, Permits, Hits) Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252570

Kiosk Hardware Ordered aroon.yaqubi@t2systems.co Complete Yes N/A 4490252614

Kiosk Hardware Shipped Complete Yes N/A Kiosk Hardware Ordered 4490252210

Kiosk Hardware Received Complete Yes N/A Kiosk Hardware Shipped 4490252238

Configuration information setup aroon.yaqubi@t2systems.co Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252490

Test data sent aroon.yaqubi@t2systems.co Upcoming Yes N/A Configuration information setup, Onsite 
Hardware setup and Training 4490252631

Test Data Verified Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252668

Onsite Hardware setup and Training aroon.yaqubi@t2systems.co Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252552

Phase 4e - Training - Kristina & Arnet
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Permit Webinar Training Kristina Morris Complete Yes N/A 4490252131

Cloud Admin Training Kristina Morris Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252225

Cloud User Training Kristina Morris Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252429

Handheld Training Kristina Morris Complete Yes N/A 4490252501

Training Videos Delivered to Client Kristina Morris Upcoming Yes N/A Cloud Admin Training 4490252226

LUKE II Onsite Training aroon.yaqubi@t2systems.co Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252703

Phase 5a - Final Cloud Verification
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
All Necessary User Roles Created Jennifer Watson In Progress Yes N/A 4490253059

Mobile Users Added Jennifer Watson In Progress Yes N/A 4490252465

Cloud Users Assigned with Correct User Role(s) Jennifer Watson In Progress Yes N/A 4490252523

Test Ticket Data Cleared Out Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252297

Live Ticket Numbering Sequence Activated Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252833

Disputes enabled on patron portal (if applicable) Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490253128

Client Monthly Invoicing Structure Set Up in Back Office Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252947

Phase 5b - Final Handheld Verification
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Most recent app version assigned Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252694

Handheld Login Screen Customized Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252107

Printing from device tested using Client's account In Progress Yes N/A 4490252692

iChalk enabled (if applicable) Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490252445

iMeter enabled (if applicable) Jennifer Watson Complete Yes N/A 4490253106

14



Phase 6 - Deployment
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Project Readiness Validation Sign Off Document sent Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252594

Project Readiness Validation Document returned Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252757

Parking Management System Go Live Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A

Custom Preprinted Paper Stock Order, 
Historical Data Migration Import, 
eCommerce Patron Portal UI Customization, 
UPsafety Enforcement Hardware Order

4490252259

Phase 7 - Post Deployment
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Send Project Survey Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490253033

Completed Project Survey Returned Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252801

Enable Registered Vehicle Owner Lookups Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490253010

Ensure Automated Notice Service is Live Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252388

Enable/Schedule Automated Notices Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252166

Send Support/Account Manager Transition Stack Form Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252673

Transition meeting with Support & Account Manager Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A Parking Management System Go Live 4490252905

Archive/NA
Name Owner(s) Status In Scope Development Status Dependent On Item ID (auto generated)
Custom Preprinted Paper Stock Order Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252145

Hearing / Court Scheduling Automation Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252538

Collections Partner Configuration Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252634

Historical Data Migration Instructions Delivered to Client Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252298

Historical Data Migration Import Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A Historical Data Migration Instructions 
Delivered to Client 4490252186

PO Box Setup (Mailed Payments, Correspondence, and or Handwritten Citation Entry Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252330

Barnacle Integration Configuration Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252097

Blackmark enabled (if applicable) Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252550

Enable Vehicle Registration Holds Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252617

Enable Collections Export Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252725

Enable Data Purge Jennifer Watson Upcoming N/A N/A 4490252356

In State DMV Registration Holds Discussion and Configuration Jennifer Watson Upcoming Yes N/A 4490252195

15



1

Sherri Marineau

From: Derrick Tokos
Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2023 5:02 PM
To: Sherri Marineau
Subject: FW: Upcoming Newport Parking Advisory Committee Meeting

Please add this as an agenda topic. 
 

From: Derrick Tokos <>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 4, 2023 5:01 PM 
To:   
Subject: Upcoming Newport Parking Advisory Committee Meeting 
 
Hi Michelle, 
 
Per our conversation earlier today, we will add to the Parking Advisory Committee’s upcoming meeting agenda a 
discussion item regarding whether or not they want to make portions of the mapped Permit / Timed areas available for 
full day parking.  At their last meeting, the group agreed to provide a lower priced annual permit in these Tier II areas, at 
$100 a year.  This is in addition to the monthly option.  The Committee also agreed to increase the parking period for the 
commercial fishing community, near Port Docks 5 and 7, to 96 hours.  Both of these changes were in response to 
feedback received at the outreach meetings, and I fully expect the group will carefully weigh your concerns as well. 
 
The Advisory Committee meeting will be held at 6pm on October 18th at Newport City Hall, and it is open to the public if 
you would like to attend. 
 
Thank you for reaching out to share your concerns.  
 

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP 
Community Development Director 
City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, OR 97365 
ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644 
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov 
 

16



60

48

52

25

32

36

50

21

31

28
15

7

19

12

8

11

6

5

4

10

9

3

2

52

2

5

11

3

28

2

15

2

11

12

3

3

3

21

12

51

33

22

19

16

13

7

6

4

¯0 300 600 900150
Feet

This map is for informational use only and has not been prepared for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
includes data from multiple sources. The City of Newport assumes no responsibility for its compilation or use and users of this
information are cautioned to verify all information with the City of Newport Community Development Department.

City of  Newport
Community Development Department
169 SW Coast Highway              Phone:1.541.574.0629
Newport, OR 97365                    Fax:1.541.574.0644

Draft Bay Front Parking Management Alternative
Aerial Image Taken 2021

4-inch, 4-band Digital Orthophotos
Date: October 13, 2023 (v5)

Legend
Kiosk Locations
Zone A Permit (Tier I Pricing)
Zone B Permit (Tier I Pricing)
Zone C Permit (Tier II Pricing)
Zone D Permit (Tier II Pricing)
Paid / Permit
Paid Only
Permit / Timed
Unrestricted
Paid / Permit
Permit / Timed
Unrestricted

Bay Blvd Lot

Lee Street Lot

Canyon Way Lot

Fall Street Lot

Abbey Street Lot

Paid Parking:
Pricing $1 hr (4 hr maximum stay)
11am to 7pm
7 Days a Week - May to October
Weekends Only - November to April

Permit Parking:
Tier I Pricing
$45 mo. (12 hr daily maximum)
Tier II Pricing
$25 mo. (12 hr daily maximum)
$100 annual permit
Commercial Fishing Community
Email Invitation to Apply from Port
Pricing $45 mo. (valid 96 hr period)
Charter Day Permit $8
Lodging Day Permit $10

Timed Parking:
4 hr limit streets/lots
7 days a week - May to October
Weekends Only - November to April
Other dates:
4 hr limit streets
16 hr limit parking lots

Parking Stalls by Zone
Zone A Permit (Blue) - 115 Spaces
Zone B Permit (Red) - 107 Spaces
Zone C Permit (Yellow) - 155 Spaces
Zone D Permit (Brown) - 180 Spaces
E-Permits Available by Zone:
Zone A: 115
Zone B: 110
Zone C: 200
Zone D: 200

9th/Hurbert Lot
(16 hr, no fee)

City Hall Lot
(16hr, no fee)

Case Street Lot

Hatfield Lot East Boardwalk Station

Bay St. Station

Central Boardwalk Station

West Boardwalk Station

Case St. Station

Hurbert St. Station

Lee St. Station

Abbey St. Lot Station

Fall St. Lot Station

Fall St. Station

Option: Free Street Parking
Uphill of Hydrant at Retaining Wall

Option: Free Street Parking East of
Port Dock 7 Admin. Building Acess

Option: Free Street Parking
Uphill of Canyon Way Lot

Option: Free Street Parking
Hurbert Street

17



1

Sherri Marineau

From: Derrick Tokos
Sent: Wednesday, October 04, 2023 5:02 PM
To: Sherri Marineau
Subject: FW: Cameras

Another topic to add to the agenda. 
 

From: Derrick Tokos <>  
Sent: Monday, October 2, 2023 8:25 AM 
To: Janell Goplen   
Subject: RE: Cameras 
 
Hi Janell, 
 
Our IT staff is researching camera options, and I’ll reach out to them to get the specs on a couple of the products they 
are looking at.  They are focusing on small, waterproof wireless networked night vision cameras that can be color 
matched.  There are power sockets toward the top of the light poles.  That is where they would be placed. 
 
We asked Central Lincoln PUD for permission to place cameras on the Sheppard Hook light poles and they are reviewing 
the request internally.  I can add this as a topic for the next Advisory Committee meeting.  Hopefully, we will have a 
response from Central Lincoln by then. 
 

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP 
Community Development Director 
City of Newport 
169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, OR 97365 
ph: 541.574.0626 fax: 541.574.0644 
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov 
 
 
 
 

From: Clearwater Restaurant    
Sent: Friday, September 29, 2023 10:25 PM 
To: Derrick Tokos   
Subject: Cameras 
 

[WARNING] This message comes from an external organization. Be careful of embedded links.  

 
I wanted to learn more about the comment made during the last in person meeting regarding cameras on street lights 
on the bayfront.  I would like more information. Do you have it? is the information posted somewhere?  
 
 

18



2

‐‐  
Janell Goplen 
 

 

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 1 

 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2215 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14.14 OF THE 
NEWPORT MUNICIPAL CODE RELATED TO OFF-STREET PARKING 

REQUIREMENTS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT 
IN SPECIAL PARKING AREAS 

 

(Newport File No. 3-Z-22) 
 
Findings: 
 
1.  On August 14, 2023, the Newport Planning Commission initiated amendments to the 
Newport Zoning Ordinance, codified as Title XIV of the Newport Municipal Code, to 
reduce minimum off-street parking requirements for new development or redevelopment 
in special parking areas where public parking is managed with meters or a combination 
of parking meters and permits.   
 

2.  The amendments carry out implementation measures listed in the parking study the 
City Council adopted in 2020 with Ordinance No. 2163, which reads as follows: 
 

“Implementation Measure 1.3.1: Pursue metered zones, hybrid paid/permit, and 
hybrid permit/timed zones for high demand areas along the Bayfront; and” 
 
“Implementation Measure 3.2.3: Reduce or eliminate minimum off-street parking 
requirements for new development or redevelopment in metered and 
meter/permit zones.” 

 

3.  The City is rolling out a meter and a combination meter and paid parking permit 
program for the Bayfront, with full implementation anticipated by the end of the year.  At 
that time, the City will shift to demand management, using pricing to influence parking 
behavior in order to realize better vehicle turnover, reducing congestion and improving 
safety.  In exchange, the City has agreed to reduce or eliminate off-street parking 
requirements for new development and redevelopment in these high demand areas.  
Existing off-street parking requirements have been an impediment to economic growth 
because it is not practical (or in some cases even possible) to construct off-street parking 
because of terrain constraints. 
 
4.  The draft amendments were developed in consultation with the Parking Advisory 
Committee at its May 17, 2023 and August 16, 2023 meetings, the Planning Commission 
at work sessions on May 22, 2023 and August 14, 2023, and the City Council at a work 
session on June 20, 2023.  Proposed substantive changes are more specifically 
described below: 
 

46



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 2 

 

a.  Newport Municipal Code (NMC) Section 14.14.100, Special Parking Areas, applies 
to Nye Beach, City Center, and the Bayfront.  It is being amended to include a new 
subsection 14.14.100(B), which provides that uses within a special area where meters 
are utilized, in all or part of the special area, may pay a one-time fee in lieu of providing 
the off-street parking that would otherwise be required, provided the parking demand 
does not exceed 20 spaces.  Such fee shall be in an amount established by Council 
resolution.  Uses with a parking demand in excess of 20 spaces must provide off-street 
parking sufficient to accommodate the excess demand.  Parking ratios in subsection 
14.14.030 or a parking demand analysis authorized under subsection 14.14.040 are 
to be used to determine a use(s) parking demand.   
 
b.  A new subsection 14.14.100(C) is created, establishing that existing uses that 
provide off-street parking in order to comply with the provisions of this section, or prior 
parking ordinances, shall not be required to retain such parking if they are located 
within a special area where public parking meters are utilized, in all or part of the 
special area.  This amendment addresses an equity concern where, over the years, 
some Bayfront users were required to provide off-street parking on valuable real estate 
whereas others were not.  Large users, that generate a demand for more than 20 
parking spaces, will not be able to take full advantage of this provision because NMC 
14.14.100(B) requires they provide off-street parking. 
 
c.  A new subsection 14.14.100(D) provides that uses within a special area shall be 
subject to a “Parking District Business License Annual Fee” in an amount set by 
Council resolution, unless the City requires payment for the use of public parking in all 
or part of the special area.  This codifies the fee authorized with Council Resolution 
No. 3864.  Once this language is in place, and metering is operational, then the 
Bayfront will no longer be subject to a Parking District Business License Annual Fee.  
Similarly, if Nye Beach implements a paid parking permit program at some point in the 
future, then it would also no longer be subject to a parking district business license 
fee. 
 
d.  Lastly, NMC Section 14.14.030, which states “for reconstruction or change of type 
of use, credit be given to the old use so that the required parking shall be based on 
the increase of the new use,” is being amended to clarify that “old use” is any use or 
structure on a property within the last 10 years.  This aligns with the period of time an 
individual can claim System Development Charge credits for a prior use (NMC 
12.15.065). 

 

5.  The Newport Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 25, 2023 to 
consider public testimony and comment on the draft amendments and, at the conclusion 
of the hearing, passed a motion recommending the City Council adopt the amendments. 
 

6.  The City Council held a public hearing on October 16, 2023 regarding the question of 
the proposed amendments, and, after considering the recommendation of the Planning 

47



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 3 

 

Commission and evidence and argument in the record, adopted the ordinance, 
concluding that it is necessary and furthers the general welfare of the community. 
 

7.  Information in the record, including affidavits of mailing and publication, demonstrate 
that appropriate public notification was provided for both the Planning Commission and 
City Council public hearings. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  Findings.  The findings set forth above are hereby adopted in support of the 
amendments to Title XIV of the Newport Municipal Code adopted by Section 2 of this 
Ordinance. 

 

Section 2.  Municipal Code Amendment.  Chapter 14.14 of Title XIV of the Newport 
Municipal Code is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit "A". 
 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect 30 days after adoption. 
 

Adopted by the Newport City Council on: _____________________ 
 

Signed by the Mayor on  __________________, 2023. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Jan Kaplan, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Erik Glover, Asst. City Manager/City Recorder 
  

48



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 4 

 

(Unless otherwise specified, new language is shown in double underline, and text to be removed is depicted with 

strikethrough. Staff comments, in italics, are for context and are not a part of the revisions.) 
 
 

CHAPTER 14.14 PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 
 

14.14.010 Purpose 
 

The purpose of this section is to establish off-street parking 
and loading requirements, access standards, development 
standards for off-street parking lots, and to formulate special 
parking areas for specific areas of the City of Newport. It is 
also the purpose of this section to implement the 
Comprehensive Plan, enhance property values, and preserve 
the health, safety, and welfare of citizens of the City of 
Newport. 
 

14.14.020 Definitions 
 

For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall 
apply: 
 
Access. The point of ingress and egress from a public street 
to an off-street parking lot or loading and unloading area. 
 
Aisle. Lanes providing access to a parking space. 
 
Gross Floor Area. The total area of a building measured by 
taking the outside dimensions of the building at each floor 
level intended for occupancy or storage. 
 
Loading Space. A parking space for the loading and unloading 
of vehicles over 30 feet in length. 
 
Parking Space. An area for the parking of a vehicle. 
 
Site Plan. A map showing the layout of the building, parking, 
landscaping, setbacks, and any other pertinent information 
concerning the development of a site. 
 
Use. Any new building, change of occupancy, or addition to 
an existing building. 
 

Exhibit “A” 

Ordinance No. 2215 

49



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 5 

 

14.14.030 Number of Parking Spaces Required 
 

A.  Off-street parking shall be provided and maintained as set 
forth in this section. Such off-street parking spaces shall 
be provided prior to issuance of a final building inspection, 
certificate of occupancy for a building, or occupancy, 
whichever occurs first.  

 
B. For any expansion, reconstruction, or change of use, the 

entire development shall satisfy the requirements of 
Section 14.14.050, Accessible Parking. Otherwise, for 
building expansions the additional required parking and 
access improvements shall be based on the expansion 
only and for reconstruction or change of type of use, credit 
shall be given to the old use so that the required parking 
shall be based on the increase of the new use. For the 
purpose of this section “old use” is any use or structure on 
a property within the last 10 years. 

 
C. Any use requiring any fraction of a space shall provide the 

entire space. In the case of mixed uses such as a 
restaurant or gift shop in a hotel, the total requirement shall 
be the sum of the requirements for the uses computed 
separately.  

 
D. Required parking shall be available for the parking of 

operable automobiles of residents, customers, or 
employees, and shall not be used for the storage of 
vehicles or materials or for the sale of merchandise. 

 
E.  A site plan, drawn to scale, shall accompany a request for 

a land use or building permit. Such plan shall demonstrate 
how the parking requirements required by this section are 
met. 

 
F. Parking shall be required at the following rate. All 
calculations shall be based on gross floor area unless 
otherwise stated. 

 

1. General Office 1 space/600 sf 

2. Post Office 1 space/250 sf 

3. General Retail (e.g. shopping centers, apparel 
stores, discount stores, grocery stores, video 
arcade, etc.) 

1 space/300 sf 

50



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 6 

 

4. Bulk Retail (e.g. hardware, garden center, car 
sales, tire stores, wholesale market, furniture 
stores, etc.) 

1 space/600 sf 

5. Building Materials and Lumber Store 1 space/1,000 sf 

6. Nursery – Wholesale 
Building 

1 space/2,000 sf 
1 space/1,000 sf 

7. Eating and Drinking Establishments 1 space/150 sf 

8. Service Station 1 space/pump 

9. Service Station with Convenience Store 1 space/pump + 1 space/ 200 sf 
of store space 

10. Car Wash 1 space/washing module + 2 
spaces 

11. Bank 1 space/300 sf 

12. Waterport/Marine Terminal 20 spaces/berth 

13. General Aviation Airport 1 space/hangar + 1 space/300 sf 
of terminal 

14. Truck Terminal 1 space/berth 

15. Industrial 1.5 spaces/1,000 sf 

16. Industrial Park 1.5 spaces/5,000 sf 

17. Warehouse 1 space/2,000 sf 

18. Mini-Warehouse 1 space/10 storage units 

19. Single-Family Detached Residence 2 spaces/dwelling 

20. Duplex 1 space/dwelling 

21. Apartment  1 space/unit for first four units + 
1.5 spaces/unit for each 
Additional unit 

22. Condominium (Residential) 1.5 spaces/unit 

23. Townhouse 1.5 spaces/unit 

24. Cottage Cluster 1 space/unit 

25. Elderly Housing Project 0.8 space/unit if over 16 dwelling 
units 

26. Congregate Care/Nursing Home 1 space/1,000 sq. ft. 

27. 
 

Hotel/Motel 
 

1 space/room + 
1 space for the manager (if the 
hotel/motel contains other uses, 
the other uses 
Shall be calculated separately 

28. Park 2 spaces/acre 

29. Athletic Field 20 spaces/acre 

30. Recreational Vehicle Park 1 space/RV space +  

51



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 7 

 

1 space/10 RV spaces 

31. Marina 1 space/5 slips or berths 

32. Golf Course 4 spaces/hole 

33. Theater 1 space/4 seats 

34. Bowling alley 4 spaces/alley 

35. Elementary/Middle School 1.6 spaces/classroom 

36. High School 4.5 spaces/classroom 

37. Community College 10 spaces/classroom 

38. Religious/Fraternal Organization 1 space/4 seats in the main 
auditorium 

39. Day Care Facility 1 space/4 persons of license 
occupancy 

40. Hospital 1 space/bed 

41. Assembly Occupancy 1 space/8 occupants 
(based on 1 occupant/15 sf of 
exposition/meeting/assembly 
room conference use not 
elsewhere specified 

 
Staff:  Section 14.14.030 has been broken up into distinct 
regulatory concepts.  The language requiring that “for 
reconstruction or change of type of use, credit be given to the 
old use so that the required parking shall be based on the 
increase of the new use” is silent about whether or not a use 
that has ceased operation counts as an “old use.”  Clarifying 
language is being added indicating that, for the purpose of this 
section, “old use” is any use or structure on a property within 
the last 10 years.  That aligns with the period of time an 
individual can claim System Development Charge Credits for 
a prior use (NMC 12.15.065).  A typo is being corrected for the 
industrial use parking ratio. 
 

14.14.040 Parking Requirements for Uses Not Specified 
 

The parking space requirements of buildings and uses not set 
forth above shall be determined by the Planning Director or 
designate. Such determination shall be based upon 
requirements for the most comparable building or use 
specified in Section 14.14.030 or a separate parking demand 
analysis prepared by the applicant and subject to a Type I 
decision making procedure as provided in Section 14.52, 
Procedural Requirements. 
 

52



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 8 

 

14.14.050 Accessible and Electric Vehicle Parking 
 

Parking areas shall meet all applicable accessible parking and 
electric vehicle charging infrastructure requirements of the 
Oregon Structural Specialty Code to ensure adequate access 
for disabled persons, and sufficient electric vehicle parking 
infrastructure for future users.  
 

14.14.060 Compact Spaces 
 

For parking lots of five vehicles or more, 40% of the spaces 
may be compact spaces measuring 7.5 feet wide by 15 feet 
long. Each compact space must be marked with the word 
"Compact" in letters that are at least six inches high. 
 

14.14.070 Bicycle Parking 
 

Bicycle parking facilities shall be provided as part of new multi-
family residential developments of five units or more; new 
retail, office, and institutional developments; and park-and-
ride lots and transit transfer stations. 
 
A. The required minimum number of bicycle parking spaces 

is as follows, rounding up to the nearest whole number: 
 

Parking Spaces Required Bike Spaces Required 

1 to 4 a 1 

5 to 25 1 

26 to 50 2 

51 to 100 3 

Over 100 1/25 
a.  Residential developments less than 5 units are exempt from bicycle 
parking requirements. 

 
B. Bicycle parking for multiple uses (such as commercial 

shopping centers) may be clustered in one or several 
locations but must meet all other requirements for bicycle 
parking. 

 
C. Each required bicycle parking space shall be at least two 

and a half by six feet. An access aisle at least five feet wide 
shall be provided and maintained beside or between each 
row of bicycle parking. 

53



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 9 

 

D. Bicycle parking facilities shall offer security in the form of 
either a lockable enclosure in which the bicycle can be 
stored or a stationary object (e.g., a "rack") upon which a 
bicycle can be locked. 

 

E. Areas set aside for required bicycle parking must be 
clearly marked and reserved for bicycle parking only. 

 

14.14.080 Shared Parking 
 

The off-street parking requirements of two or more uses, 
structures, or parcels may be satisfied by the same parking lot 
or loading spaces used jointly to the extent that it can be 
shown by the owners or operators of the uses, structures, or 
parcels that their parking needs do not overlap. If the uses, 
structures, or parcels are under separate ownership, the right 
to joint use of the parking space must be evidenced by a deed, 
lease, contract, or other appropriate written document to 
establish the joint use.  
 

14.14.090 Parking Lot Standards 
 

Parking lots shall comply with the following: 
 

A. Parking Lot Minimum Standards. Parking lots shall be 
designed pursuant to the minimum dimensions provided in 
Table 14.14.090-A and Figure 14.14.090-A. 

 

Table 14.14.090-A. Parking Lot Minimum Dimensions for Standard Space 

 

54



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 10 

 

Figure 14.14.090-A. Parking Lot Minimum Dimensions 
 

 
B. Surfacing. 
 

1. All parking lots that are required to have more than five 
parking spaces shall be graded and surfaced with 
asphalt or concrete. Other material that will provide 
equivalent protection against potholes, erosion, and 
dust may be approved by the City Engineer if an 
equivalent level of stability is achieved. 

 
2. Parking lots having less than five parking spaces are 

not required to have the type of surface material 
specified in subsection (1), above. However, such 
parking lot shall be graded and surfaced with crushed 
rock, gravel, or other suitable material as approved by 
the City Engineer. The perimeter of such parking lot 
shall be defined by brick, stones, railroad ties, or other 
such similar devices. Whenever such a parking lot 
abuts a paved street, the driveway leading from such 

 

55



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 11 

 

street to the parking lot shall be paved with concrete 
from the street to the property line of the parking lot. 

 
3. Parking spaces in areas surfaced in accordance with 

subsection (1) shall be appropriately demarcated with 
painted lines or other markings. 

 
C. Joint Use of Required Parking Spaces. One parking lot 

may contain required spaces for several different uses, but 
the required spaces assigned to one use may not be 
credited to any other use. 

 
D. Satellite Parking. 
 

1. If the number of off-street parking spaces required by 
this chapter cannot be provided on the same lot where 
the principal use is located, then spaces may be 
provided on adjacent or nearby lots in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. These off-site spaces are 
referred to as satellite parking spaces. 

 
2. All such satellite parking spaces shall be located within 

200 feet of the principal building or lot associated with 
such parking. 

 
3. The applicant wishing to take advantage of the 

provisions of this section must present satisfactory 
written evidence that the permission of the owner or 
other person in charge of the satellite parking spaces 
to use such spaces has been obtained. The applicant 
must also sign an acknowledgement that the 
continuing validity of the use depends upon the 
continued ability to provide the requisite number of 
parking spaces. 

 
4. Satellite parking spaces allowed in accordance with 

this subsection shall meet all the requirements 
contained in this section. 

 
E. Lighting. Lighting from parking lots shall be so designed 

and located as to not glare onto neighboring residential 
properties. Such lighting shall be screened, shaded, or 
designed in such a way as to comply with the requirement 
contained in this section. This section is not intended to 

56



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 12 

 

apply to public street lighting or to outdoor recreational 
uses such as ball fields, playing fields, and tennis courts. 

 
F. Drive-Up/Drive-In/Drive-

Through Uses and 
Facilities. Drive-up or drive-
through uses and facilities 
shall conform to the 
following standards, which 
are intended to calm traffic, 
and protect pedestrian 
comfort and safety (Figures 
1 and 2).  

 
 

1. The drive-up/drive 
 through facility shall orient to an alley, driveway, 
 or interior parking area, and not a street; and 

 
2. None of the drive-up, 

drive-in or drive-through 
facilities (e.g., driveway 
queuing areas, windows, 
teller machines, service 
windows, kiosks, drop-
boxes, or similar facilities) 
are located within 20 feet 
of a street and shall not be 
oriented to a street corner. 
(Walk-up only teller 
machines and kiosks may 
be oriented to a street or placed adjacent to a street 
corner); and 

 
3. Drive-up/in queuing areas shall be designed so that 

vehicles do not obstruct a driveway, fire access lane, 
walkway, or public right-of-way. 

 
G. Driveway Standards. Driveways shall conform to the 

requirements of Chapter 14.46. 
 
H. Landscaping and Screening. Parking lot landscaping and 

screening standards must comply with Section 14.19.050. 
 

Figure 2 – Drive-up and Drive-Through Facilities 

 

 

 Figure 1 – Drive-Up and Drive-Through Facilities 

 

57



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 13 

 

I. Preferential Carpool/Vanpool Parking. Parking areas that 
have designated employee parking and more than 20 
vehicle parking spaces shall provide at least 10% of the 
employee parking spaces, as preferential carpool and 
vanpool parking spaces. Preferential carpool and vanpool 
parking spaces shall be closer to the employee entrance 
of the building than other parking spaces, with the 
exception of ADA accessible parking spaces. 

 

14.14.100 Special Area Parking Requirements 
 
A. The boundary of the These special areas are defined as 

follows: 
 

A1. Nye Beach. That area bounded by SW 2nd Street, 
NW 12th Street, NW and SW Hurbert Street, and the 
Pacific Ocean. 

 
B2. Bayfront. That area bounded by Yaquina Bay and the 

following streets: SE Moore Drive, SE 5th and SE 
13th, SW 13th Street, SW Canyon Way, SW 10th, SW 
Alder, SW 12th, SW Fall, SW 13th, and SW Bay. 

 
C3. City Center. That area bounded by SW Fall Street, 

SW 7th Street, SW Neff Street, SW Alder Street, SW 
2nd Street, SW Nye Street, Olive Street, SE Benton 
Street, SW 10th Street, SW Angle Street, SW 11th 
Street, SW Hurbert Street, and SW 10th Street. 

 
B.  Uses within a special area where public parking meters are 

utilized, in all or part of the special area, may pay a fee in 
lieu of providing the off-street parking required in this 
section provided the parking demand does not exceed 20 
spaces.  Such fee shall be in the amount established by 
Council resolution.  Uses with a parking demand in excess 
of 20 spaces must provide off-street parking sufficient to 
accommodate the excess demand.  Parking ratios in 
subsection 14.14.030 or a parking demand analysis 
authorized under subsection 14.14.040 shall be used to 
determine a use(s) parking demand. 

 
Staff:  The proposed language responds to Parking Study 
Comprehensive Plan Implementation Measure 3.2.3, which 
calls for the City to reduce or eliminate minimum off-street 
parking requirements for new development or redevelopment 

58



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 14 

 

in metered and meter/permit zones.  It is a combination of 
Options B.2 and B.3, presented to the Parking Advisory 
Committee on May 17, 2023, the Planning Commission on 
May 22, 2023, and the City Council on June 20, 2023.  
Blending the two options was the clear preference coming out 
of the meetings, with Option B.2 requiring a one-time fee in 
lieu of a developer constructing off-street parking to serve 
their project and Option B.3 capping the amount of parking a 
new development or redevelopment can place on the public 
parking system before the requirement for new off-street 
parking is triggered. 
 
The draft code provisions outlined above would allow smaller 
scale development (i.e. that which generates a demand for 
less than 20 parking spaces) to occur without requiring they 
construct new off-street parking.  Larger projects that 
generate a demand for more than 20 parking spaces would 
have to construct off-street parking to accommodate the 
additional demand.  A one-time fee will be charged for new 
development or redevelopment that generate a demand for up 
to 20 parking spaces.  This would create a modest amount of 
funding to help pay for new public parking, transit, etc. in 
concert with metering revenues.  It is justifiable because new 
development or redevelopment places additional strain on the 
finite amount of parking available in these areas.  The fee 
would be scaled to disincentivize development that places 
significant new demand on the l public parking spaces.  Here 
is an example of what that could look like: 
 
Additional Demand: 
 
Spaces 1 to 5  $0 ea. 
Spaces 6 to 10   $5,000 ea. 
Spaces 11 to 15 $7,500 ea. 
Spaces 16 to 20 $10,000 ea. 
 
At the Planning Commission meeting it was suggested that 
there be no fee for the first 5 required off-street spaces.  That 
is consistent with the existing fee resolution that allows the 
first 5 spaces to be exempted where a parking business 
license surcharge is in place.  That surcharge will go away 
though once a meter/permit program is in place. 
 
Here are examples of how the one-time fee would play out: 
 

59



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 15 

 

Example 1:  Convert 1,400 sf of retail to restaurant (About the 
size of the retail building where Noble Estates offered wine 
tasting (146 SW Bay Blvd)  
 
9.33 spaces (new restaurant) - 4.67 spaces (existing retail) = 
4.66 (5 spaces).  $0 fee. 
 
Example 2:  12,000 sq. ft. of waterfront industrial with 4,000 
sq. ft. of warehouse space (at old California Shellfish site 411 
SW Bay Blvd). 
 
20 spaces (new industrial/warehouse). No existing use 
credits.  $112,500 fee.  While significant, this cost is less than 
what it would take to construct a lot of this size and could 
potentially be absorbed as part of the development costs. 
 
Example 3:  Construct 47 room hotel, 2,626 sf retail (Abbey 
Hotel project) on site previously occupied by a nightclub, 
restaurants, and retail.  (836 – 856 SW Bay Blvd). 
 
65 spaces (new hotel/retail use) – 49 spaces (credit for old 
use) = 16 spaces. Old use provided 20 off-street spaces, so 
impact of new project is 36 spaces.  43 parking spaces 
provided off-street.  No fee.   
 
Example 4:  Construct 47 room hotel, 2,626 sf retail on a site 
where there was no prior use.  49 space impact.  $112,500 fee 
for first 20 spaces and developer would be required to 
construct 29 off-street parking spaces. 
 
This language would only apply in special parking areas 
where meters are deployed, which is the plan for the Bayfront.  
It would not apply to Nye Beach or City Center. 
 

C. Existing uses that provide off-street parking in order to 
comply with the provisions of this section, or prior parking 
ordinances, shall not be required to retain such parking 
if they are located within a special area where public 
parking meters are utilized, in all or part of the special 
area. 

 
Staff:  This language is needed to make it clear that the few 
businesses currently providing off-street parking in a meter or 
meter/permit area will no longer be bound to do so, meaning 
they can develop these properties.  Accessible parking 

60



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 16 

 

standards, electric vehicle parking requirements, and bicycle 
parking provisions key off of the number of off-street spaces 
provided.  The City will need to consider accommodating 
those needs in public rights-of-way.  The draft language has 
been revised to limit its applicability to metered areas, which 
for the time being is the Bayfront.  Such change aligns with 
Parking Study Comprehensive Plan Implementation Measure 
3.2.3, which calls for the City to reduce or eliminate minimum 
off-street parking requirements for new development or 
redevelopment in metered and meter/permit zones.  Metered 
parking and meter/permit zones are not currently planned for 
Nye Beach and City Center.  
 
D. Uses within a special area shall be subject to a “Parking 

District Business License Annual Fee” in an amount set 
by Council resolution, unless the City requires payment 
for the use of public parking in all or part of the special 
area.  The annual business license fee established under 
this subsection shall exempt new development or 
redevelopment from having to provide up to five (5) off-
street parking spaces.  Uses that generate a demand for 
more than five (5) off-street parking spaces shall provide 
the additional spaces in accordance with the provisions 
of this section. 

 
Staff:  This subsection is needed for the Nye Beach and City 
Center special areas, where metered and meter/permit zones 
are not being implemented.  It codifies language that is 
currently in Council Resolution No. 3864, a resolution that 
would be repealed if this language is adopted.  Once this 
language is in place, and metering is operational, then the 
Bayfront will no longer be subject to a Parking District 
Business License Annual Fee.  If Nye Beach implements a 
paid parking permit program at some point in the future, then 
it would also no longer be subject to a parking district business 
license fee. 
 

14.14.110 Loading and Unloading Areas 
 

Off-street loading and unloading areas shall be provided per 
this section. 
 
A. Whenever the normal operation of any use requires that 

goods, merchandise, or equipment be routinely delivered 

61



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 17 

 

to or shipped from that use, a sufficient off-street loading 
and unloading area must be provided in accordance with 
this subsection to accommodate the delivery or shipment 
operations in a safe and convenient manner. 

 
B. The loading and unloading area must accommodate the 

numbers as set forth in Table A. At a minimum, a loading 
and unloading space must be 35 feet in length, 10 feet in 
width, and 14 feet in height. The following table indicates 
the number of spaces that, presumptively, satisfy the 
standard set forth in this subsection. 
 
Table 14.14.110-A, Required Loading Spaces 

 

Square footage of Building Number of Loading Spaces 

0-19,999 0 

20,000 – 79,999 1 

80,000 – 119,999 2 

120,000+ 3 
 
C. Loading and unloading areas shall be located and 

designed so that vehicles intending to use them can 
maneuver safely and conveniently to and from a public 
right-of-way or any parking space or parking lot aisle. No 
space for loading shall be so located that a vehicle using 
such loading space projects into any public right-of-way. 

 
D. No area allocated to loading and unloading facilities may 

be used to satisfy the area requirements for off-street 
parking, nor shall any portion of any off-street parking area 
be used to satisfy the area requirements for loading and 
unloading facilities. 

 
E. Whenever a change of use occurs after January 1, 1995, 

that does not involve any enlargement of a structure, and 
the loading area requirements of this section cannot be 
satisfied because there is insufficient area available on the 
lot that can practicably be used for loading and unloading, 
then the Planning Commission may waive the 
requirements of this section. 

 
F. Whenever a loading and unloading facility is located 

adjacent to a residential zone, the loading and unloading 

62



 

 

 Ordinance No. 2215 – Off-Street Parking Requirements in Special Parking Areas – File No. 3-Z-22 18 

 

facility shall be screened per unloading facility shall be 
screened per Section 14.18. 

 

14.14.120 Variances 
 

Variances to this section may be approved in accordance with 
provisions of Section 14.33, Adjustments and Variances, and 
a Type III Land Use Action decision process consistent with 
Section 14.52, Procedural Requirements.* 

 

63



64



                          
                            
                        

                         
                        

                      
                        

                     
                      

                       
           

                        
                        
  

                    
                    

                       

                       
                       

                      
                        
 

                 

  

           

  

                  
                     

                       
                     

                       
               

                         
    

 

65



         

   
   

   
    

   
    

 

 

66



67



         

   
   

   
    

   
    

 

 

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



                         
    

         

   
   

   
    

   
    

     

 

75



    

 

     

   

   

  
       

      

    

  
      

      
    

      
      

        
    

    

 

    

   

 

76



77



  

   

  
 

     
      

         
    

    

  
    

    

  
     

    

        

  
     

    

   
   

   

   

78



 

  
        
         

       
       

        
     

       
    

    

  
         

    
     

      
      
       

   

    

  
       

     
        

      
 

 

    

   

79



     

  

  

      
        

       

    

  
      
   

    

  

   

    

  
      

   

  

       
 

    

     

   

 

80



 

          

        
     

    

   
      
       

      
       

    

    

  
     

  

    

   
     
  

    

  
         

      

 

    

   

81



82



83



       

 

      

   

  
       

       
       

        
       

        
      

      
   

    

 

   

   

84



    

 

   
       

        
       

       

     

   
        

       
        

 
      

      
       

        
     

         
       

    
       
     

      
        

      
     

      
 

   

   

 

85



       

 

   

         
       

     
      

        
     

       
        

    

   
       
         

        
     

     
        
       

     
     

     
         

       
       
    

     

 

    

   

86



      

 

   

        
      

 

    

  

      
     
        

        
      

      
        

      
     

         
    

    

  
        
        

 

    

 

   

   

87



      

 

         

      

   
     

     
     

      
      
     

 

   

  
   

   

 

   

   

88



       

 

   
      

    

        

     

  
        
     

   

    

  
    

     
      

    

  

 

      
     

          
      

 

 

    

   

89



90



91



92



93



94



95


	Parking Advisory Committee Agenda
	2018-8284 - Memorandum
	2018-8285 - Draft Parking Advisory Comm Mtg Minutes 09-20-2023
	2018-8289 - Updated Implementation Schedule
	2018-8289 - T2 Parking Management Implementation Status Report
	2018-8289 - Staff Email to Michelle Moore Regarding Her Request for Free Parking Areas
	2018-8289 - Updated Bayfront Parking Large Format Map 
	2018-8289 - Chair Goplen's Request to Discuss Security Cameras 
	2018-8289 - Ordinance No. 2214 (approved)
	2018-8289 - Draft Ordinance No. 2215 (Council to consider on 10/16/23)
	2018-8289 - Public Comment



